



NAFTM

2008 ANNUAL REPORT

CHARITY GAMING IN NORTH AMERICA

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FUNDRAISING TICKET MANUFACTURERS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Mission Statement	2
Letter from the President.....	3
Introduction.....	4
Terminology	5
Games Played	6
Top 10 States.....	7
Receipts by Game	8 - 9
Fees and Taxes	10
Reporting Periods	11
Taxation and Administrative Fees Methods.....	12 - 13
Staffing Budget: Source of Budget.....	14
Legal Authority	15
Survey Participants – U.S.	16 - 17
Survey Participants – Canada	18

MISSION STATEMENT

The National Association of Fundraising Ticket Manufacturers (NAFTM) is a trade association of companies that manufacture pull tabs, bingo paper, and related supplies for the North American charitable gaming industry.

The association keeps members informed of ever-changing product standards, gaming laws, regulations, and enforcement practices. The NAFTM Seal, when affixed to any gaming product, ensures its recipient of a product that meets or exceeds any state standard, as well as the standards established by the North American Gaming Regulators Association (NAGRA). NAFTM also works closely with charitable organizations and in cooperation with Allied Charities of Minnesota (ACM) has published Charity Gaming: An Association Guidebook available to charities interested in developing a charity gaming association in their state or province.

For more information, please visit our website at www.naftm.org

LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT

The National Association of Fundraising Ticket Manufacturers (NAFTM) is a trade association of companies that manufacture pull tabs, bingo paper, bingo equipment and related supplies for the North American Charitable Gaming industry.

NAFTM members provide products to thousands of charitable organizations to help them generate funding for nearly every sort of charitable and community activity one can imagine. Our products support local needs and local people. Charitable gaming allows communities to have fire and rescue vehicles, parks and playgrounds; it allows kids to play sports, go to camp and discover art and music; it helps parishes provide quality education; it builds community centers, funds programs for senior citizens, and the physically and mentally challenged; and it provides much needed services to our veterans and military families.

Charitable gaming has contributed billions of dollars to communities all across North America. Although it comprises only a small portion of the total gaming industry, charitable gaming provides direct benefits to virtually every corner of every state and province.

We are pleased to present the NAFTM Annual Report on Charity Gaming in North America for calendar year 2008. This year's report is an example of the changing times. It is slightly scaled back and entirely web based! Based on a survey of our most frequent readers, this year's report is all about the numbers. We have eliminated some of the dialogue and focused the report on those areas our readers indicated were most helpful and useful. We hope you like the result.

We had tremendous response this year to our survey request and we want to thank everyone who took the time to participate and send information. It is through the hard work and dedication of those who provide the data for each state and province that we are able to assemble this report year after year. The NAFTM Report is the only comprehensive collection of charitable gaming information published in North America and it exists because of the effort of all who contributed.

Thank you for your support.

Roger Franke
Roger Franke, President



NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FUNDRAISING TICKET MANUFACTURERS

1295 Bandana Blvd.
Suite 335
St. Paul MN 55108

p: 651.644.4710
f: 651.644.5904
www.NAFTM.org

INTRODUCTION

Established in 1983, the National Association of Fundraising Ticket Manufacturers is a trade association of manufacturers of pull tabs, bingo paper and supplies used by charities in fundraising events.

The members of NAFTM are dedicated to the promotion of charitable gaming as a profitable endeavor for charities to raise funds for their activities. In addition, NAFTM's membership is dedicated to the continual improvement of the charitable gaming industry through the pursuit of manufacturing and trade practices that meet or exceed governmental regulations. Effective regulation of charitable gaming is necessary for the health of the charities dependent upon its revenue, and NAFTM's membership supports and encourages government regulation.

NAFTM's services include the gathering of statistical and other information about the industry in an effort to supply the public, regulators, legislators and other interested parties with the best possible picture of charitable gaming. The information is published in an annual report, and this 2008 report reflects the most recent information about the

industry. The report should be a valuable tool for the many individuals and agencies that support efforts to improve charitable gaming in the United States and Canada.

Readers of the annual report will be able to find out how extensive charitable gaming is in the United States and Canada, and how much revenue is derived from the activity by charities. The number of licensees, taxation schemes, regulatory agency staffing, and law and regulation citations are contained in the report. The report also contains a list of contacts for those who require additional detail or elaboration.

Report readers may also contact NAFTM to discuss any matter pertaining to charitable gaming and the contents of this report.

NAFTM is grateful to the many agencies and individuals who supplied statistics and other information for this report. Thank you for your assistance in our endeavor to publish the only comprehensive report on charitable gaming in North America.

American Games, Inc.
504 34th Ave.
Council Bluffs, IA 51501
712.366.9553
www.amgam.com

Arrow International, Inc.
9900 Clinton Rd.
Cleveland, OH 44144
800.321.0757
www.arrowinternational.com

Bingo King/Trade Products
2807 Lincoln Way
Lynnwood, WA 98087
425.745.3700 or 800.527.3891
www.bingoking.com

GameTec
2214 Myers Rd.
Albert Lea, MN 56007
507.373.1871

International Gamco, Inc.
9335 North 48th St.
Omaha, NE 68152
800.524.2626
www.intlgamco.com

Specialty Manufacturing
2807 Lincoln Way
Lynnwood, WA 98087
425.407.1475 or 800.240.5223
www.specialtypulltabs.com

Mary Magnuson, Legal Counsel
335 Atrium Office Building
1295 Bandana Blvd.
St. Paul, MN 55108
651.644.4710
651.644.5904 (fax)
www.NAFTM.org

Complete game data not included in this report because (1) charity gaming is not permitted; (2) there is no central regulatory authority; (3) the activity is unregulated; or (4) they did not respond to the survey questionnaire; Alabama, Arkansas, California, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Maryland, Montana, Nevada, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Tennessee, Utah, Vermont, Wyoming.

TERMINOLOGY

WHAT IS BINGO?

"Bingo!" has become such a familiar term it extends beyond bingo hall doors into a phrase of excitement used around the world. Still the traditional way in which game participants express winning in a bingo game, it is also used to express surprise or sudden satisfaction in any endeavor.

The game itself has been around for centuries, its most recent origins being traced to 16th century Italy. Originally called "beano" in the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, it became a short linguistic hop to term the game "bingo." "Bingo" is now the universally understood term to describe a game in which game participants compete against each other for prizes to be awarded on the basis of designated numbers or symbols on a bingo card that conform to numbers or symbols selected at random.

WHAT IS A PULL TAB?

Pull tabs are an integral part of the game of bingo and in other charitable fundraising efforts.

Officially, a "pull tab" is a folded or banded ticket, or a card with perforated tabs on one side, made completely of paper products, the face of which is covered or hidden to conceal numbers, symbols or letters. Some of the configurations of numbers, symbols or letters have been designated in advance as prize winners. Game participants open the tickets or perforated tabs and compare the configurations with game information sheets called "flares" to determine whether a particular ticket or pull tab is a winner.

The history of pull tabs is not nearly as extensive as that of bingo. They emerged in the 1970s as a popular fundraising game for charities and found easy acceptance in bingo games. They spread to other locations, such as fraternal clubs, service clubs and veterans' organizations and into taverns.

By any other term, pull tabs are fun to play and have proved to be profitable for charities. They are also called break-open tickets, charity game cards, jar tickets, pickle cards, instant bingo cards, punch boards, bell jars and lucky sevens in various regions in the United States and Canada.

OTHER TERMS USED IN THIS REPORT:

"Gross Receipts" is the total amount of money spent on a charity game by game participants. In a bingo game, it is the total amount wagered through the purchase of bingo cards. Pull tab games use the term to describe the total amount of money wagered through the purchase of all the pull tabs in a game.

"Net Proceeds" is the amount of money left after the prizes and expenses have been paid. *In most instances taxes and fees are paid from the net receipts. Thus, the balance would be the profit to the charity.*

GAMES PLAYED

Bingo
Electronic Bingo
Pull Tabs
Progressive Pull Tabs
Seal Card Games
Jar Tickets
Raffles
Last Sale
Casino Nights
Other

State											Licensed Organizations
Alaska	•	•	•		•	•	•	•		•	1,150
Colorado	•	•	•	•	•		•	•			1,250
Connecticut	•		•		•		•			•	1,757
Illinois	•	•	•			•	•	•	•	•	1,700
Indiana	•		•	•	•		•		•	•	3,032
Iowa	•						•		•	•	Not Reported
Kentucky	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	695
Louisiana	•	•	•	•	•		•		•	•	710
Michigan	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	•	•	2,200
Minnesota	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		•	1,300
Mississippi	•	•	•							•	82
Missouri	•	•	•				•				801
Nebraska	•	•	•		•		•			•	1,062
New Jersey	•	•	•		•	•	•		•	•	7,186
New Mexico	•		•	•			•				94
New York	•	•	•		•	•	•		•	•	3,386
North Dakota	•	•	•			•	•	•		•	346
Ohio	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	1,854
Oregon	•	•					•		•	•	523
Pennsylvania			•		•	•	•			•	11,200
South Carolina	•	•									112
South Dakota	•		•				•			•	Not Reported
Texas	•		•	•	•	•	•	•		•	1,207
Virginia	•	•	•	•	•	•	•		•	•	559
Washington	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	2,480
Wisconsin	•		•				•				8,802
Province											Licensed Organizations
Alberta	•	•	•		•		•		•	•	8,374
British Columbia	•						•		•	•	7,540
Manitoba	•		•				•		•	•	855
Newfoundland & Labrador	•	•					•		•	•	3,000
Nova Scotia	•	•					•				1,189
Ontario	•	•	•		•		•		•	•	N/A
Saskatchewan	•	•			•		•			•	3,191

TOP 10 STATES

TOP TEN STATES BY GROSS RECEIPTS

State	Total Gross Receipts
Ohio	\$1,389,624,532
Minnesota	\$1,070,311,000
Texas	\$685,365,337
Washington	\$682,546,527
Indiana	\$505,507,169
Michigan	\$479,860,080
Kentucky	\$456,435,712
Alaska	\$365,988,666
New York	\$349,145,770
Virginia	\$316,967,024

TOP TEN STATES BY NET RECEIPTS

State	Net Receipts
Ohio	\$190,129,623
Minnesota	\$84,308,000
Michigan	\$75,051,108
Indiana	\$67,335,123
New Jersey	\$55,300,700
Kentucky	\$47,860,136
Virginia	\$44,644,023
Wisconsin	\$39,484,300
Alaska	\$33,408,893
Texas	\$32,829,418

Top ten based on available reported statistics.



RECEIPTS BY GAME

State	Bingo Gross	Pull Tab Gross	Raffles Gross	Other Gross
Alaska	\$66,480,378	\$288,006,394	\$8,534,291	\$2,967,603
Colorado	\$48,000,000	\$51,000,000	\$8,000,000	
Connecticut	\$20,953,589	\$9,468,590	\$13,233,928	\$337,847
Illinois	\$57,438,000	\$198,356,666	Local Control	\$16,216,666
Indiana	\$89,677,539	\$393,170,049	\$18,168,637	\$4,490,944
Iowa	N/A		N/A	N/A
Kentucky	\$92,668,530	\$347,426,419	\$9,450,660	\$6,890,104
Louisiana	\$101,215,100	\$104,179,900	\$3,047,600	12,789,600 (11,622 electronic bingo devices; 1,167,500 misc.)
Michigan	\$133,678,293	\$212,813,190	\$62,431,893	\$70,936,704
Minnesota	\$60,848,000	\$982,467,000	\$7,148,000	\$19,848,000
Mississippi	\$77,378,541	\$28,215,262	N/A	\$869,291
Missouri	\$65,214,513	\$36,172,328	N/A	N/A
Nebraska*	\$10,932,500	\$40,737,900	\$5,951,700	\$210,833,600
New Jersey	\$44,800,900	\$43,200,500	\$49,900,000	
New Mexico	\$18,363,056	\$10,003,139	Unknown	\$0
New York	\$81,278,223	\$263,524,906	\$6,671,404	\$910,565
North Dakota	\$33,119,959	\$143,470,093	\$4,094,132	\$83,408,969
Ohio	\$143,965,955	\$1,245,658,577	N/A	N/A
Oregon	\$42,008,890		\$6,945,884	\$911,981
Pennsylvania	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
South Carolina	\$129,892,729			
South Dakota	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Texas	\$379,807,377	\$305,557,960	N/A	
Virginia	\$127,000,000	\$182,101,406	\$7,430,107	\$454,958
Washington	\$45,820,726	\$51,798,787 \$272,314,899	\$8,058,085	\$362,153 \$304,191,877
Wisconsin	\$19,978,400		\$64,332,400	

Province	Bingo Gross	Pull Tab Gross	Raffles Gross	Other Gross
Alberta	\$201,988,000	\$35,935,000	\$121,315,000	\$1,041,993,000
British Columbia	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Manitoba	\$48,213,300	\$4,651,800	\$16,607,000	\$1,379,700
Newfoundland & Labrador	\$157,080	\$55,821	\$103,978	\$21,347
Nova Scotia	\$60,490,000	N/A	\$32,266,000	
Ontario	\$602,000,000	\$310,000,000	\$317,000,000	N/A
Saskatchewan	\$59,702,600	\$12,206,446	\$37,499,326	\$462,395

Explanation – Receipts by Games Table

This table will provide the reader with a breakdown on how much is wagered by state or province in bingo, pull tabs, raffles and other games sponsored by charities ("gross receipts"). It will also identify the amount of money ("net proceeds") charities will have derived from the play of those games during the 2008 fiscal year for that jurisdiction, and which they may use for their programs. Finally, a calculation is made to show the percentage of net proceeds to gross receipts so the reader may make comparisons among the reporting jurisdictions.

RECEIPTS BY GAME

Total Gross Receipts	Total Net Proceeds	% Net Proceeds/Gross Receipts
\$365,988,666	\$33,408,893	9%
\$107,000,000	\$6,200,000	6%
\$43,993,954	\$15,306,910	35%
\$272,011,332		
\$505,507,169	\$67,335,123	13%
N/A		
\$456,435,712	\$49,860,136	11%
\$221,232,200	\$26,005,300	12%
\$479,860,080	\$75,051,108	16%
\$1,070,311,000	\$84,308,000	8%
\$106,463,093	\$15,258,702	14%
\$101,386,841	\$10,816,015	11%
\$268,455,700	\$26,831,200	10%
\$137,901,400	\$55,300,700	40%
\$28,366,196	\$4,142,647	15%
\$349,145,770		
\$264,093,153	\$16,992,996	6%
\$1,389,624,532	\$190,129,623	14%
\$49,866,755	\$10,225,467	21%
N/A		
\$129,892,729	\$223,216	
N/A		
\$685,365,337	\$32,829,418	5%
\$316,967,024	\$44,644,023	14%
\$106,039,751	\$13,669,003	12%
\$576,506,776		
\$84,310,800	\$39,484,300	47%
Total Gross Receipts	Total Net Proceeds	% Net Proceeds/Gross Receipts
\$1,401,231,000	\$147,288,000	11%
N/A	\$35,579,500	
\$70,851,800	\$15,493,500	22%
\$338,227	\$92,770	27%
\$92,756,000	\$22,420,000	24%
\$1,229,000,000	\$175,000,000	14%
\$109,870,767	\$26,395,402	24%

Please Note: Canadian receipts are reported in Canadian dollars.

* Other gross includes Keno receipts
 ** Charitable receipts
 *** Commercial hall receipts

FEES AND TAXES

State	License Fees	Adm. Fees	Taxes	Total
Alaska	\$137,180	N/A	\$2,307,223	\$2,444,403
Colorado	\$156,000	\$108,500		\$264,500
Connecticut	\$58,050	\$1,226,293		\$1,284,343
Illinois	\$727,800			\$727,800
Indiana	\$4,156,550			\$4,156,550
Iowa	N/A	N/A		
Kentucky	\$282,845	\$2,714,485		\$2,997,330
Louisiana	\$204,900	\$1,809,700	\$2,097,200	\$4,111,800
Michigan	\$1,070,139		\$17,543,573	\$18,613,712
Minnesota	\$2,586,696	N/A	\$40,788,000	\$43,374,696
Mississippi	\$35,750	\$1,054,067	\$1,115,661	\$2,205,478
Missouri	\$48,765	N/A	\$2,154,878	\$2,203,643
Nebraska		N/A	\$5,659,100	\$5,659,100
New Jersey	\$1,800,000			\$1,800,000
New Mexico	\$10,200	\$6,680	\$134,479	\$151,359
New York	\$3,789,284		\$2,255,728	\$6,045,012
North Dakota	\$155,950		\$10,419,307	\$10,575,257
Ohio	\$3,920,936	N/A		\$3,920,936
Oregon	\$55,591	\$596,025		\$651,616
Pennsylvania	\$202,000	N/A		\$202,000
South Carolina	\$128,000	\$62,000	\$8,533,966	\$8,723,966
South Dakota	\$25,000	N/A	\$25,872	\$50,872
Texas	\$3,204,465		\$26,812,407	\$30,016,872
Virginia	\$118,100	\$2,983,577		\$3,101,677
Washington	\$14,543,674	N/A	\$39,590,983	\$54,134,657
Wisconsin	\$357,275		\$408,613	\$765,888

Province	License Fees	Adm. Fees	Taxes	Total
Alberta	\$2,897,000			\$2,897,000
British Columbia	\$195,475			\$390,950
Manitoba	\$994,036			
Newfoundland & Labrador	\$209,572		\$209,571	\$419,143
Nova Scotia	\$11,000	\$1,226,000		\$1,215,000
Ontario		N/A		
Saskatchewan	\$70,285			\$70,285

Explanation – Fees and Taxes: States and provinces use widely varying methods to assess fees and taxes for the costs of government to regulate charitable gaming and other government programs. The term "fee" is not only used to describe the amount of money charities and suppliers pay for a license to engage in charitable gaming activities, it is also used to encompass "administrative fees" calculated in some jurisdictions as a percentage of various amounts, much like a "tax." The widely varying practices have led to confusion in attempting to calculate meaningful comparisons. Reporting jurisdictions react differently when confronted with questions pertaining to "fees." The table entitled "Fees and Taxes"

uses the term "fees" to encompass both license fees and administrative fees in order to reach a figure that represents the total amount raised in a particular jurisdiction. The table entitled "Licensing Methods and License Fees" uses the term "fees" to encompass only the method by which a jurisdiction assesses an amount to obtain a license, and not the percentage-based "administrative fees." The table entitled "Taxation and Administrative Fee Methods" uses the term "fee" to encompass those administrative fees which are calculated on a percentage basis, and thus look more like the traditional "taxes," which are also described in the table.

REPORTING PERIODS

State	Dates
Alaska	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
Colorado	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
Connecticut	07/01/06 to 06/30/08
Illinois	07/01/07 to 06/30/08
Indiana	07/01/07 to 06/30/08
Iowa	07/01/08 to 06/30/09
Kentucky	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
Louisiana	07/01/07 to 06/30/08
Michigan	10/01/07 to 09/30/08
Minnesota	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
Mississippi	07/01/08 to 06/30/09
Missouri	07/01/07 to 06/30/08
Nebraska	07/01/07 to 06/30/08
New Jersey	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
New Mexico	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
New York	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
North Dakota	07/01/07 to 06/30/08
Ohio	11/01/06 to 10/31/07
Oregon	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
Pennsylvania	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
South Carolina	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
South Dakota	07/01/07 to 06/30/08
Texas	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
Virginia	01/01/08 to 12/31/08
Washington	07/01/07 to 06/30/08
Wisconsin	01/01/08 to 12/31/08

Province	Dates
Alberta	04/01/07 to 03/31/08
British Columbia	04/01/08 to 03/31/09
Manitoba	04/01/08 to 03/31/09
Newfoundland & Labrador	04/01/06 to 03/31/07
Nova Scotia	04/01/07 to 03/31/08
Ontario	04/01/07 to 03/31/08
Saskatchewan	04/01/08 to 03/31/09

TAXATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEES METHODS

State	Bingo Method of Taxation/Fees	Pull Tab Method of Taxation/Fees
Alaska	1% of Net Proceeds	1% of Net Proceeds Plus 3% of Ideal Net of Each Pull Tab Series Purchased
Colorado		
Connecticut		
Illinois	5% of Prizes	3% of Prizes
Indiana		
Iowa	6 or 7% Depending On the Area of the State	
Kentucky		
Louisiana	5% Sales Price for Supplies; 8% Sales Price of Paperless Electronic Bingo Dabber Devices	3% of Ideal Net Proceeds (Net Profit Less Sales Price)
Michigan	N/A	40% of Net Profit (Built Into Cost of Each Box)
Minnesota		
Mississippi	Class A: 1% of Gross Receipts; Class B & Class C: 0.5% of Gross Receipts	2.5% of Net Proceeds
Missouri	0.2% of One Cent per Bingo Face	2% of Gross Receipts of the Retail Sales Value
Nebraska	3% of Gross Receipts	10% of Definite Profit Which is Equal to 2.5% of Gross Proceeds
New Jersey		
New Mexico	3% of Net Proceeds	3% of Net Proceeds
New York	\$18.75 per Occasion and 3% of Net Profits	\$25 Annual Fee Plus 5% of Profits
North Dakota	3% of Gross Proceeds	4.5% of Gross Proceeds
Ohio	N/A	N/A
Oregon		
Pennsylvania	Only Sales Tax Collected on Price of Games at 6%	N/A
South Carolina	Class C: 4%; Class F: 5%; All Others: 10%	
South Dakota	N/A	N/A
Texas	5% of Prizes	5% of Prizes
Virginia	N/A	N/A
Washington	5% of Net Receipts (Gross Minus Prizes), Maximum Local Tax Rates	10% of Net Receipts (Non-Profits), 5% Gross Receipts (Commercial), Maximums
Wisconsin	1% on Gross up to \$30,000; 2% Thereafter	N/A
Province	Bingo Method of Taxation/Fees	Pull Tab Method of Taxation/Fees
Alberta		
British Columbia		
Manitoba		
Newfoundland & Labrador	1% of Prizes	\$10 per Box
Nova Scotia		
Ontario	3% of Prizes	3% of Prizes
Saskatchewan		

TAXATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEES METHODS

Raffles/Other Method of Taxation/Fees	How Revenue is Used
1% of Net Proceeds	General Fund
	Agency Fund
3% of Prizes	Bingo: 50% Mental Health Fund and 50% Common School Fund; Pull Tabs: 50% Common School Fund and 50% Gaming Law Enforcement Fund; Other Games: 100% Gaming Law Enforcement Fund
6 or 7%	Department of Revenue
Electronic Bingo Device \$600 per Device per Year	Office of Charity Gaming; Excess Fees to General Fund
N/A	Administration of Program (43%) and State General Fund (57%)
	General Fund
	Designated Bingo Operating Fund
N/A	Proceeds for Education
Keno: 2% of Gross Proceeds	Bingo: 40% Cash Fund, 60% General Fund; Pull Tabs: 40% Cash Fund, 60% General Fund; Raffles: 40% Cash Fund, 60% General Fund; Keno: 40% Cash Fund, 60% General Fund
3% of Net Proceeds	State General Fund
\$25 Annual Fee Plus 2% of Profits; \$25 Annual Fee Plus 5% of Profits	Agency Fund and Bell Jar Collection Account
5% to 20% Gaming Tax Based on Adjusted Gross Proceeds	97% of All Taxes to the State General Fund; 3% is Distributed to Local Law Enforcement
N/A	N/A
	Agency Fund for Regulation of Charitable Gaming
N/A	N/A
	Council on Aging/Parks & Recreation/Minority Affairs, All of Which are State Agencies
N/A	General Fund
	General Revenue
N/A	General Fund
5% of Net Receipts (Gross Minus Prizes); 20% of Gross Receipts for Card Rooms; 2% of Net Receipts for Amusement Games	N/A
N/A	General Fund
Raffles/Other Method of Taxation/Fees	How Revenue is Used
1% of Prizes; Usually 1% of Prizes, or \$5 per Event or Deal per Day	
N/A	N/A

STAFFING BUDGET: SOURCE OF BUDGET

State	Total Staff	Agency Budget	Source of Agency Budget
Alaska	12.5	\$1,035,316	General Revenue Fund
Colorado	6	\$1,000,000	Licensee and Administration Fees
Connecticut	22	\$1,411,165	General Revenue Fund
Illinois	Not Reported	Not Reported	Not Reported
Indiana	18	\$1,423,748	Licensing Fees
Iowa	1.5		General Revenue Fund
Kentucky	42	\$3,343,200	Application & License Fees/Funds
Louisiana	21	\$1,457,948	
Michigan	23	\$8,300,000	License Fees, Pull Tab Revenue
Minnesota	32	\$2,940,000	Legislative Appropriation - Dedicated Funds
Mississippi	13	\$1,100,000	Self Funded
Missouri	11	Not Reported	
Nebraska	17	\$2,294,128	Gaming Taxes and Licensing Fees
New Jersey	19	Not Reported	Registration, Licensing and Penalty Fees
New Mexico	4	\$400,000	General Revenue Fund
New York	17	\$2,364,000	License Fees and Additional Fees
North Dakota	17	\$1,235,308	General Fund Appropriation/Special Funds/ Reimbursement From 5 Indian Tribes
Ohio	40	\$3,500,000	Fees Paid Into Charitable Law's Gaming Fund
Oregon	4.85	\$682,375	License and Report Fees
Pennsylvania	2	N/A	Not Available
South Carolina	15	\$800,000	Percentage of Bingo Taxes Collected
South Dakota	N/A	N/A	General Funds
Texas	46	\$2,660,377	General Revenue Fund
Virginia	23	\$2,195,213	General Fund
Washington	164	\$15,071,062	License Fees/I.D. Stamps/Fines
Wisconsin	10	\$485,000	Program Revenue

Province	Total Staff	Agency Budget	Source of Agency Budget
Alberta		Not Reported	License Fees
British Columbia	26	\$2,700,000	Consolidated Revenue Fund
Manitoba		Not Reported	License & Registration Fees
Newfoundland & Labrador	6	Not Reported	Government Budget Process
Nova Scotia	38	Not Reported	Government Budget Process
Ontario	Not Reported	Not Reported	General Revenue Fund
Saskatchewan	30	Not Reported	General Revenue Fund

LEGAL AUTHORITY

State	Statutory Authority
Alaska	AS 05.15 and 15AAC 160
Colorado	Constitution of Colorado Article XVIII Section 2 – (1) through (6); Colorado Revised Statutes Title 12 Professions & Occupations – Article 9 Bingo & Raffles Law; 8 CCR 150.5-2 Rules/Regulations
Connecticut	Connecticut General Statutes, Sections 7-169 through 7-186
Illinois	230 ILCS 20/IL Pull Tabs & Jar Games Act; 230 ILCS 25/IL Bingo License & Tax Act 230 ILCS 30/IL Charitable Games Act
Indiana	IC 4-32.2 & 68 IAC 21
Iowa	Iowa Code 99B & Iowa Administrative Code 481-100/103
Kentucky	KRS Chapter 238 and 820 KAR
Louisiana	LA Revised Statutes Title 4, Section 701 et seq. and LA Administrative Code, Title 42:I:1701 et seq.
Michigan	Bingo Act: Michigan Act 382 of the Public Acts of 1972, as amended Penal Code: Michigan Act 328 of the Public Acts of 1931, as amended
Minnesota	Minnesota Statute 349.11-349.23 & 297E - Rules 7861-7865
Mississippi	97-33-1 through 97-33-203 Mississippi Code of '72
Missouri	MO Constitution Article III, Section 39a, Chapter 313 - Reg. 11 CSR 45-30
Nebraska	NE Revised Statutes, Sections 9-201 to 9-266 NE Bingo Act; Sections 9-301 to 9-356, NE Pickle Card Lottery Act; Sections 9-401 to 9-437, NE Lottery & Raffle Act; Sections 9-601 to 9-635, NE County & City Lottery Act; Regulations: Title 316, Chapter 35
New Jersey	NJSA 5: 8 -1-77, NJAC 13:47-1.1 thru 13.47.20
New Mexico	NM Bingo Raffle Act & Gaming Control Act
New York	General Municipal Law – Article 9A & Article 14H, Executive Law Article 19-B & NYCRR 9E Rules & Regs
North Dakota	North Dakota Century Code Chapter 53-06.1, Adm. Code Article 99-01.3
Ohio	Ohio Revised Code Chapter 2915
Oregon	Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 464 & Administrative Rule, Division 25
Pennsylvania	Local Option Small Games of Chance Act 10 P.S. 311-327 – Regs. 61 PA Code 901.1 et seq.
South Carolina	SC Code of Laws – Sec. 12-21-3910 – Bingo Tax Act
South Dakota	Codified Laws of South Dakota – Title 22 Chapter 25
Texas	Occupations Code, Chapter 2001 - Bingo; Occupations Code, Chapter 2002 - Raffles
Virginia	VA Statutes 18.2 340.15-38, 2.2-2455-6; 2.2-905-6; 19.2-389.A-14 & 11 VAC 15-22 & 11 VAC 15-31
Washington	RCW 9.46 Revised Code of Washington; WAC 230 Washington Administrative Code
Wisconsin	Wisconsin Statutes Chapter 563 & 564; CH WGC 41, 42, 43, 44 Wisconsin Administrative Code
Province	Statutory Authority
Alberta	Criminal Code of Canada; Alberta Gaming & Liquor Act, and Gaming & Liquor Regulations
British Columbia	Criminal Code of Canada Section 207 (1)(b) and Gaming Control Act & Regulations
Manitoba	Criminal Code of Canada Section 207 (1)(b) and Gaming Control Act of Manitoba
Newfoundland & Labrador	Criminal Code of Canada Section 207(1)(b), Newfoundland & Labrador Regulations
Nova Scotia	Gaming Control Act, 1994-95 Bingo, Ticket, Lottery, Carnival & Charitable Gaming & Supplier Regs
Ontario	Criminal Code of Canada; Gaming Control Act - 1992; Order-In-Council 2038/97, 267/98 & 1413/08
Saskatchewan	Criminal Code of Canada Section 207(1)(b) & The Alcohol and Gaming Regulation Act "97 Sec. 4(1) & 12(d)

SURVEY PARTICIPANTS - U.S.

Alaska

Jeff Prather
Gaming Group Supervisor
Department of Revenue, Tax Division
P. O. Box 110420
Juneau, AK 99811-0420
(907) 269-3410
jeff_prather@alaska.gov
www.tax.alaska.gov

Colorado

Rudy Johnson
Chief Investigator
Colorado Department of State
1700 Broadway Blvd., Suite 300
Denver, CO 80290
(303) 894-2200 ext. 6402
rudy.johnson@sos.state.co.us
www.sos.state.co.us

Connecticut

Paul D. Bernstein
Unit Head
Charitable Games Unit
P.O. Box 310424
Newington, CT 06131-0424
(860) 594-5480
paul.bernstein@po.state.ct.us
www.ct.gov/dosr

Illinois

Brian T. Horn
Public Service Administrator
Manager, Office of Bingo and
Charitable Games
Illinois Department of Revenue
P.O. Box 19480
Springfield, IL 62794-9480
(217) 782-3830
brian.horn@illinois.gov
www.tax.illinois.gov

Indiana

Diane Freeman
Director, Charity Gaming Division
Indiana Gaming Commission
101 W. Washington St.
East Tower - Suite 1600
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 233-0046
dfreeman@igc.in.gov
www.in.gov/igc

Iowa

Sherry Hopkins
Program Manager
Iowa Dept. of Inspections & Appeals
Lucas State Office Building
Des Moines, IA 50319-0083
(515) 281-7357
sherry.hopkins@dia.iowa.gov
www.dia.iowa.gov

Kentucky

Leah Cooper Boggs
Director of Licensing
Department of Charitable Gaming
132 Brighton Park Blvd.
Frankfort, KY 40601
(502) 573-5528, ext. 255
leah.boggs@ky.gov
www.dcg.ky.gov

Louisiana

Michael Legendre
Director
Louisiana Department of Revenue,
Office of Charitable Gaming
PO Box 98502
Baton Rouge, LA 70884
(225) 925-1835
michael.legendre@la.gov
www.ocg.louisiana.gov

Michigan

Lorrie L. Dundon
Ticket Specialist
Michigan Lottery, Charitable
Gaming Division
P. O. Box 30023, 101 E. Hillsdale
Lansing, MI 48909
(517) 335-5787
dundonl@michigan.gov
www.michigan.gov/cg

Minnesota

Bernice Caruth
Rules & Education Coordinator
Gambling Control Board
Suite 300 South
1711 W. County Road B, Suite 300 South
Roseville, MN 55113
(651) 639-4030
bernice.caruth@gcb.state.mn.us
www.gcb.state.mn.us

Mississippi

Sonny Weathersby
Director
Mississippi Gaming Commission
Charitable Gaming Division
620 North St. Suite 200
Jackson, MS 39225-3577
(601) 576-3800
sweathersby@mgc.state.ms.us
www.mgc.state.ms.us

Missouri

Jane Bax
Charitable Games Manager
Missouri Gaming Commission
P. O. Box 1847
Jefferson City, MO 65102
(573) 526-5373
jane.bax@mgc.dps.mo.gov
www.mgc.dps.mo.gov

Nebraska

Gerald Otoupal
Compliance Manager
Department of Revenue,
Charitable Gaming Division
P. O. Box 94855
Lincoln, NE 68509-4855
(402) 471-5940
gerald.otoupal@nebraska.gov
www.revenue.ne.gov/gaming

New Jersey

Martin Silva
Investigator I
New Jersey Consumer Affairs
124 Halsey Street, 6th Floor
Newark, NJ 07101
(973) 273-8012
scott.jenkins@lps.state.nj.us
www.njconsumeraffairs.gov

New Mexico

Michelle Y. Garza
Auditor
New Mexico Gaming Control Board
4900 Alameda Blvd. NE
Albuquerque, NM 87113
(505) 841-9752
michelle.garza@state.nm.us
www.nmgcb.org

SURVEY PARTICIPANTS - U.S.

New York

Bruce T. Samboy
Director, Division of Gaming Regulation
N.Y. State Racing & Wagering Board
Charitable Gaming Division
1 Broadway Center, Suite 600
Schenectady, NY 12305
(518) 395-5400
bsamboy@racing.state.ny.us
www.racing.state.ny.us

North Dakota

Keith G. Lauer
Director, Gaming Division
Attorney General's Office,
Charitable Gaming Division
600 East Blvd. Ave., Dept. 125
Bismarck, ND 58505
(701) 328-4848
klauer@nd.gov
www.ag.nd.gov

Ohio

Mark Graves
Chief Accountant
Charitable Law Section
Ohio Attorney General's Office
150 East Gay St., 23rd Floor
Columbus, OH 43215
(614) 466-3181
mgraves@ohioattorneygeneral.gov
www.ag.state.oh.us

Oregon

Kitty Telles
Gaming Registrar
Department of Justice, Charitable
Activities Section
1515 SW 5th Avenue
Portland, OR 97201
(971) 673-1975
kitty.telles@doj.state.or.us
www.doj.state.or.us

Pennsylvania

Megan Sanders
Tax Examiner
Pennsylvania Department of Revenue
Bureau of Business Trust Fund Taxes
P.O. Box 280906
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0906
(717) 772-3088
mesanders@state.pa.us
www.revenue.state.pa.us

South Carolina

John W. Clark
Bingo Licensing & Enforcement, Supervisor
Department of Revenue
301 Gervais Street
Columbia, SC 29214
(803) 898-5162
clarkj@sctax.org
www.sctax.org

South Dakota

Carol Logan
Section Coordinator
Department of Revenue & Regulation
Special Taxes Division
445 E. Capitol Ave.
Pierre, SD 57501
(605) 773-3311
carol.logan@state.sd.us
www.state.sd.us/drr

Texas

Phil Sanderson
Director
Texas Lottery Commission,
Charitable Bingo Operations Division
611 East 6th Street
Austin, TX 78701
(512) 344-5155
phil.sanderson@lottery.state.tx.us
www.txbingo.org

Virginia

Carolyn Buko
Audit and Revenue Manager
Department of Agriculture & Consumer
Services, Division of Charitable Gaming
101 N. 14th St., 17th Fl.
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 786-3616
carolyn.buko@dca.virginia.gov
www.dca.virginia.gov

Washington

Cameron Baker
Research Analyst
Washington State Gambling Commission
P. O. Box 42400
Olympia WA 98504-2400
(360) 486-3476
cameronb@wsgc.wa.gov
www.wsgc.wa.gov

Wisconsin

Brian Whittow
Director, Office of Charitable Gaming
Wisconsin Division of Gaming
3319 Beltline Hwy.
Madison, WI 53708
(608) 270-2545
brian.whittow@wisconsin.gov
www.doa.state.wi.us

SURVEY PARTICIPANTS - CANADA

Alberta

Darrell Skarban
Manager, Financial Review
Alberta Gaming & Liquor Commission
50 Corriveau Ave.
Saint Albert, AB T8N 3T5
Canada
(780) 447-8978
darrell.skarban@aglc.gov.ab.ca
www.aglc.gov.ab.ca

British Columbia

Kashi Tanaka
Manager, Strategic Initiatives
Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch
P.O. Box 9311 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria, BC V8W 9N1
Canada
(250) 952-6651
kashi.tanaka@gov.bc.ca
www.hsd.gov.bc.ca/gaming

Manitoba

Andrea Kowal
Policy Analyst
Manitoba Gaming Control Commission
800-215 Garry Street
Winnipeg, MB R3C 3P3
Canada
(204) 954-9423
akowal@mgcc.mb.ca
www.mgcc.mb.ca

Newfoundland/Labrador

Doug Walsh
Manager
Department of Government Services
5 Mews Place
P.O. Box 8700
St. John's, NL A1B 4J6
Canada
(709) 729-2660
dwalsh@gov.nl.ca
www.gs.gov.nl.ca

Nova Scotia

Terry Kelly
Director of Licensing
Nova Scotia Alcohol & Gaming Authority
40 Alderney Drive, 5th Floor
Dartmouth, NS B2Y 3Y8
Canada
(902) 424-6022
kellytb@gov.ns.ca
www.gov.ns.ca/lwd/agd/

Ontario

Harry Gousopoulos
Manager, Strategic Policy
Alcohol & Gaming Commission of Ontario
90 Sheppard Street East, Suite 200
Toronto, ON M2N 0A4
Canada
416-325-0427
harry.gousopoulos@agco.ca
www.agco.on.ca

Saskatchewan

Gerry Aquin
Licensing & Charitable Gaming Analyst
Saskatchewan Liquor & Gaming Authority
P.O. Box 5054
2500 Victoria Avenue
Regina, SK S4P 3M3
Canada
(306) 798-0494
gaquin@slga.gov.sk.ca
www.slga.gov.sk.ca

The background of the entire page is an abstract graphic consisting of numerous blue lines of varying thicknesses radiating from a central point, creating a starburst or sunburst effect. The lines are in different shades of blue, from a bright cyan in the center to a deep navy blue at the edges.

NAFTM 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

© 2009 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FUNDRAISING TICKET MANUFACTURERS